OQB&
&
L ]
o

,"

L B

»?“’,‘;;:0% THORNAPPLE TOWNSHIP
Yy % PLANNING COMMISSION
<\INfo .

, Meeting Agenda

Monday, August 26, 2024

GOODD GOVERNMENT HAS
- ITH ROOTS IN THE PEOPLE

Q}(.)

qﬁji i“iw 7:00 P.M.

Call to Order (7:00 P.M.)

Approval of Agenda:

Approval of Minutes July 22, 2024
Citizen Comments:

Public Hearings:

New Business:
a. None

Unfinished Business:
a. Special Use #173 — Steven & Chere Hildabrand, 7877 W. Irving Rd Home Based Business
Tabled last month for purposes of a site plan and fencing quotes to be provided.

Committee Reports:

a. Ordinance Committee — [Kilgore, Finkbeiner, Rairigh, Gasper (all)]
b. Site Plan Committee — [Finkbeiner, Denton, Wandrie, Hansson (alt)]
c. Joint Planning Committee — [Rairigh, Gasper, Denton, Kilgore (alt)]

Administrator’s Report:

a. Zoning Ordinance Audit

b. Zoning Report

c. Code Enforcement Report

10. Commissioner Comments:

11. Adjournment



THORNAPPLE TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION

Regular Meeting, July 22, 2024

1. Call to Order:

a. The meeting was called to order by Chairperson Tom Kilgore 7:00 p.m. at Thornapple

Township located at 200 E. Main St. Middleville, M! 49333.

. Present: Brian Finkbeiner, Elaine Denton, Linda Gasper, Liz Hansson, Tom Kilgore, Sandy
Rairigh, Craig Wandrie. Also Present: Todd Boerman, Lana Quist, Cindy Ordway, Debbie
Blough, Chad Waggerin, Jordan Rogers, Ashley Rogers, Aaron Johnson, Robert Clawson,
Brianna Clawson, Natalie Cairns, Junior Cairns, Roger Campbell, Deb Price, Chere Hildabrand,
Steven Hildabrand, Debbie Case, Dan Moody, Marty Wenger, Paul Lettinga.

. Approval of Agenda:

MOTION by Gasper, SUPPORT by Denton to approve the agenda as printed. MOTION CARRIED
with 7 yes voice votes.

Approval of Minutes:

MOTION by Gasper, SUPPORT by Denton to approve the June 24, 2024, meeting minutes as
amended Page 2: 5(b) iv “Gensterblum. Rairigh asked if after the 90-day period IT was to be
used as an office. Gasper” adding the word “it.” MOTION CARRIED with 7 yes voice votes.

Citizen Comments: None

. Public Hearings:

a. Special Use #156 — Paul Lettinga, 2190 Patterson Rd Mining Operation

Applicant Presentation — Paul Lettinga said he would like to continue what they started
with Aggregate taking the water proposed to the South to continue close to forty acres.
This was approved by EGLE. Aggregate has transferred this permit to us, and we will
continue to mine on the proposed area on my wife and my property behind the dairy
office and behind towards Bass Rd. What we are taking out now is bedding soil, we will
be using birds eye bedding sand, sand, and road material gravel. We will not be using a
permanent plant. We will be using an all portable, so they will be coming in and mining.
There is a blueprint that was reviewed by Todd at the end of the year for the Township
on where the plant will set, just off from the easement that Aggregate, and Stoneco
used. We would be using that drive going off Patterson. We will be using their electric
service. Anything that will be used for dry will be used off the portable plant to do any
blending. It would be the first phase, two-year renewal.

Todd Boerman gave an overview of his letter. Boerman said there was an issue with the
manure pond, which was discussed with Lettinga. There was going to be a 100 ft setback,
which shrunk to 50 ft. This was not clear until we saw the aerials. We do not have an
understanding between the parties on who caused this, but it was requested that this
would be restored as soon as possible by Lettinga. Gasper asked how it would be



restored. Boerman stated it could be sloped down from 50 ft onto the bottom of the
bank, secure it, and put vegetation on it so it would be sure not to go anywhere. The
other alternative is to build the 100 ft setback, all the way back up to grade. There has
been washout even in that 50 ft, but it should not be at risk presently. We do want it
fixed.

iii. Staff Introduction —

iv. Public Hearing OPEN: 7:25p.m. No comments received. CLOSED: 7:25p.m. Gensterblum
mentioned the neighbors did not like this, as they were worried about lowering property
value, the cleanliness of drinking water, worries on the safety of children nearby, and
that it may be dirty.

v. Commissioner Questions and Deliberation — Finkbeiner asked how they would manage
the performance bond they currently have in place once this one is added. Boerman
stated there can be two performance bonds on the same property. Finkbeiner asked if
Lettinga plans to protect the wetland, at least for the next two years. Yes. Finkbeiner also
asked about the hours of operation. Lettinga wanted flexible hours, but it is mandated to
have signage on hours of operation. Gasper stated the hours can be Monday through
Friday, from 7 a.m. to 6 p.m. and Saturday from 7 a.m. to 12 p.m., no operations on
Sundays or any legal holidays. Lettinga replied that they have no issue working within
those hours of operation. Finkbeiner stated he was wary about the conceptual on the
Postema property. He would like it removed from the paperwork. Lettinga said this
would be fine. Gasper asked about number 9 in Boerman'’s letter, on if Aggregate will be
removing the truck wash, and if there would need to be a requirement to build another.
Boerman said that it will be left because of the mining operation plan, but it would be
their responsibility to take it down otherwise. Lettinga said what they are using now is
water running down the driveway. Gasper asked about the plan for going around the
wetland, Lettinga said there is a road. Kilgore asked how they would deal with the
manure pond, and Gasper added on by asking if it overflowed if it would go near the
pond. Boerman said it was very doubtful that it would overflow, but worst-case scenario
it would mix with the rainwater. Lettinga said they would bring the slope back out in a
few weeks. Gasper noted there should be a condition to add a silt fence.

MOTION by Finkbeiner, SUPPORT by Finkbeiner to approve Special Use #156 — Paul
Lettinga, 2190 Patterson Rd Mining Operation and site plan #124 subject to Gasper’s
additions to the 2024 permit Conditions — Lettinga #24. Restore 100 ft setback from north
slope of the manure pond, and #25. Remove proposed access road to Postema property.

Roll Call Vote: Finkbeiner: yes, Denton: yes, Gasper: yes, Hansson: yes,
Kilgore: yes, Rairigh: yes, Wandrie: yes. MOTION CARRIED with 7 yes roll call
votes

b. Special Use #173 — Steven & Chere Hildabrand, 7877 W. Irving Rd Home Based Business

i. Applicant Presentation — Steven Hildabrand said it is a small business, they have three
dumpsters. The backyard is concealed by trees. He stated he would like the proper
paperwork, and to continue moving forward.

ii.  Staff Introduction — Phil Gensterblum brought attention that the Hildebrands did not
realize they needed a permit for a home-based business. It had been running since May.
Their trucks are parked in the back of their property. There is a huge border of trees that

THORNAPPLE TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION July 22, 2024



block them, but there is a small driveway that you can see them through. There was an
issue brought forward about a new driveway, but he went out earlier that day to look at
it and it does not look new at all. It seemed weathered.

iii.  Public Hearing OPEN: 7:46p.m. Roger Campbell, 7858 W Irving Rd, stated the dumpsters
are facing his barn. The gravel road is not good, and it gets torn up by the traffic.
Campbell mentioned that in the winter when the leaves fall, the dumpsters can become
an eyesore. It does not seem right to him that it is a commercial business on residential
property. Deb Price, 3333 Loop Rd, said she lives at the property across the drive. Price
mentioned she was told that the drive should not be legal, because their home is off
Irving Rd, but the drive is on Loop Rd. She is concerned that Hildebrand’s dispensers will
use the drive. It is a country road, it is gravel. It is not set up for a business. Price brought
up her worries about the wear and tear on the road, that the dust could get bad, and she
is concerned on the property value lowering. Gensterblum brought attention to the
gravel road being a concern to bring to the Barry County Road Commission. Debbie
Blough, 3461 Railwood Rd, said she is all for home-businesses, but she has questions as
far as if there is a problem how it would be resolved, as well as the cleanliness of the
dumpsters, if there would be any hazardous waste or what type of waste would be in
them. She brought up that if there is any waste from roofing or construction that might
have nails, which would be bad for the roads. She also questioned if the dumpsters
would be taken any time of day or night, and if they are cleaned before they are brought
back. Gensterblum said they are all brand new dumpsters, the Hildebrand’s dump the
waste before they bring them back to their property, they all have covers, they would not
take them out before 7a.m. or after 6p.m., and there would never be any hazardous
materials in them. Price asked again what the course of action would be if anything did
go wrong, and Kilgore answered they would be able to file a complaint. Gensterblum said
he tries his best to collaborate with people, so he would give them twenty-four to
seventy-two hours to fix the issue before handing out a written notice. Steven Hildabrand
said they are very particular about their property; they have interest in keeping it looking
nice. He said he would make sure the dumpsters always look new and would repaint
them when needed. He mentioned he has kids that go in the backyard, and that is
another reason the dumpsters will always be empty when returned and there will be no
nails or hazardous materials in them. Debbie Case, 3454 Loop Rd, said she believes the
reason there are so many trucks and wear and tear on the road is not because of the
Hildabrand'’s, but because of the tree farm that is down the road. She said she has no
issues with the dumpster business. CLOSED: 8:00p.m.

iv. Commissioner Questions and Deliberation — Denton asked Hildabrand if they are
planning to grow the business, and Hildabrand said they wanted about fifteen to twenty
dumpsters, but they would never be on the property at the same time. Finkbeiner asked
how many dumpsters they have now. They currently have three. Finkbeiner asked how
many acres their property is. It is about five, with about two and a half acres in the back.
Gasper asked how many trucks they have, as someone had mentioned trucks coming in
and out of the drive. Hildabrand said they have one truck. Gasper questioned where the
trailers were stored. Hildabrand said there is only one trailer, and it is stored in the back
by the dumpsters as well. Rairigh said that the ordinance requires that they must be
stored in a building or behind a gated 6 ft high screened fence enclosure. Hildabrand said
they would put in more trees as it would be more eye-appealing than a fence. Gasper
said she appreciated the comments, but more trees do not meet the requirements of the
zoning ordinance. She added that this may need to be tabled until an expert helps to
create a site plan on how to store the equipment, either within a building or behind a 6 ft
screened fence. Hildabrand said there would be more attention to the house if there was

THORNAPPLE TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION July 22, 2024



a fence put up. Kilgore replied that they must be in compliance with the ordinance.
Gasper mentioned they should table it again.

MOTION by Gasper, SUPPORT by Denton to TABLE the decision on SLU #173 — Steven &
Chere Hildabrand, 7877 W. Irving Rd Home Based Business until such time as the
applicant returns with a site that meets the standards of the zoning ordinance.

Roll Call Vote: Finkbeiner: yes, Denton: yes, Gasper: yes, Hansson: yes,
Kilgore: yes, Rairigh: yes, Wandrie: yes. MOTION CARRIED with 7 yes roll call
votes

6. New Business: None.
7. Unfinished Business: None.
8. Committee Reports: None,
9. Administrator’s Report:
a. Zoning Ordinance Audit
b. Zoning Report

¢. Code Enforcement Report: A couple of residents on Jackson Rd need to clean up, some having
junk cars sitting out. Bowmen Dr had chickens roaming. The neighbor who was receiving
complaints on their chickens sent in a permit for a fence. Permits have been busy, forty-seven
to forty-eight have been submitted in the last few weeks. Not many new homes are being built,
only three or four since May. A few pools and accessory buildings are being built.

10. Commissioner Comments

11. Adjournment:

MOTION by Finkbeiner SUPPORT by Denton to adjourn the meeting at 8:21 p.m. MOTION
CARRIED with 7 yes voice votes.

Sandra Rairigh, Secretary Lana Quist, Recording Secretary

Approved

THORNAPPLE TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION July 22, 2024



¥z0e/€/9 HA4S MaN We4 asNoyY1|Q 404 1SUO) SIA bun  00-£00-ZTO-¥T-80 99jewed M SZEL ¥z0z/€/9  TE--vT0C

veoz/6z/s H4S maN 1340 3|I3Y2IN 02-T00-0Z0-¥T-80 pY JauegquId €8STT  ¥202/6¢/S  0E--+20T

veoe/ee/s 3ouay Agajddy 3due71  00-900-SLT-¥T-80 uteudinesd £v0ZT  ¥20T/12/S  62-%20C

veoz/oz/s H4S maN sa)eo es[] 404 UBYoH 3|0)  0Z-TT0-TE0-¥T-80 py el duhed N 6£EC  ¥20T/0C/S  8C--¥C0C

veoe/oz/s MRETY piojsuey eszed g ueg  00-010-S80-¥1-80 JQ YPON N 00€9  ¥20Z/02/S  LT--¥Z0C

vzoz/st/s A29p X 03 suleIS JeM [IBYINN  00-L¥0-0ST-7T1-80 1D poomuono) S6€0T  ¥20C/vT/S  9¢-v20T

S9JO0N panoJddy a3eqg adA} swep juednddy # 1901ed SSaJppy 9leq MWQNS  j# MWJdd

apeJs anoqe 6T S Y1819y X1 BIA pALLIUOd PNg  £Z02/ST/S ERETel uanug pAed  00-L00-OYT-¥T1-80 U14e3N OT6ZT  ¥ZOT/ET/S  ST--vT0T
8pig 2oy 93uewe Alo) B BIIUOAL  OT-600-€€0-¥T-80 pY SLUON N 0TZZ ¥20Z/9/S ¥T-vzoe

vz0z/1/S 8pig 29y PJ21SON BI(N[ '8 A3IS  0€-900-9€0-¥1-80 py dool z/9L vz0e/1/S  €2--vzZ0e

uoos Suiwod dde ‘NS ue salinbay--paluag say 1IN SION 3L ydesor g Awy  G0-00-vT0-+1-80 py aueJD M 9208 ¥20Z/1/S  2T-vT0T
N1S ue Joy 3ulji4 pJeA juoly ur pauem--paluag 3pig oV JasAny dluef B 9A3)S  €€-STO-TO0-¥T-80 u7 s3eQ usljjoy S/TL ¥z0e/1/s 1ot
vzoz/1/s 8pig ooy 199ds [9BYdIN  00-8Z0-ZEO-YT-80 Py sineq OV8TT  ¥¢0¢/0E/y  0T--¥20C

vzoe/ve/y 3pig 2oy ABMoN @MW 0T-STO-TOO-¥1-80 py 99jeunled 0V0L  YZOZ/vZ/v  6T-¥0C

Ze/v Msue oy 3uljly pled juol) ul paruep--patusa  ¥20Z/Te/y 3pig 2oy AUUNSA BN SS-TO0-Z00-YT-80  4Q S340YS UEdUNQ 8089 ¥20t/t/v  81-te0t
uoisuedxa Ju1id100) ON "UMOp pawing 30 yZ0Z/TZ/Y 8p|g 20V plingsy ussdey wir oy sp|ing 173D 02-80-6T0-71-80 py e uddID 0POCT  ¥C0Z/Te/v  L1-tC0C
1S Ue Joj Suljiy pied Juoly ul paue--paiusg 3p|g 22y uyeiqoy pJeydly  0S-T00-SZ0-¥T-80 Py UM 009L  ¥20T/LT/Y 9T—-¥20T
vzoz/6z/v H4S maN pieexau)  (0/-200-6TO-vT-80 py uosianed Zv9v  ¥Z0Z/CT/v  ST-¥T0C

N1S ue Joy Suljiy paed Juoly ui paruem--paluaq 3pig 2oy ynys uAjueN 09-0TO-ZTO-¥T-80 PY UOSLISQOY TS¥9  ¥ZOZ/TT/¥  v1--¥20C
¥Z02/8/v {ood S,UB[SINH 104 5j00d XO4  0€-900-8T0-¥T-80 Py 93e7 ueaun( T/6S vzor/v/v  €1--¥20C

pJeA juouy ul paluem--patuaq ogazen Japing dijiud 0T-9T0-ST-¥1-80 LE-W "N 0105 ¥zoz/T/v  T1--veot

veoe/se/e H4S maN siey uuAnD  0T-600-£20-¥T-80 Py swepy ZT¥6  $20T/ST/E  TT--¥20C

vzoz/ET/e ogaze AS|yiny uely  00-vTO-LTO-¥1-80 aue} MaIAAYS H08TT  HZ0T/ET/E  0T--¥Z0C

¥93p pjo Sue|das isnl ‘uoilelale 3ZISON  £202/9/¢ 92e|day yIa(Q smnig aLuuy  0T-800-020-+T-80 10 3pISPOOM OVS8TT ¥20¢/S/€  60--vZ0T
veoz/v/e 339p 03 Joos ppy uosyoef piemp3  QT-£00-STO-¥1-80 LE-W N 00SS vzoe/v/e  80-tC0C

¥eoe/1e/e PPV JeD 40821028 IN Y199 ' 1102S  0S-Z00-200-¥T-80 1D epA10899  ¥20T/0Z/t  L0--¥20¢C

¥20e/8z/t H4S maN Jaysewnyds  /6-z00-ZE0-¥T-80 JgJsduads 102 ¥20T/82/¢  90--v20T

3plg 2oy 9IX0T  +202/0Z/¢ pig 22v 9)sal ueq  00-Z¥0-0¥0-T-80 Jguewnog zgel  vZOZ/ET/T SO-¥T0T

S4NIONJIS JUILIND 01 UONPPE OSXOF  +202/L/C pIg 22y Jaddiyas 4ar  0Z-200-TTO-#1-80 Py 99jewed M SLES vz0T/L/T  ¥0-¥20T

94M1ONJIS JUSLIND O} UOIIPPE ZEXYT  £202/¥2/T pig 22y suosied sualieq @ Apuey  00-€T10-0Z0-7T-80 Py e U9 29/TT  ¥T0T/€C/T  €0--¥T0T

peAjuosy uiidniisuod 011senbay 99T NS ¥202/22/T pig 22V lI315a) uepior  /0-S6T-920-71-80 1D Aepp suaneH 689¢€ ¥20T/€/T  ¢0--¥T0T
pieAjuolj uldnisuod 03 3sanbay S9T NS  ¥20Z/27/T PIg 2ov ueeTueA MIN  00-0TO-L00-¥T-80 pY uosialied 9/%9 ¥202/e/1  10--¥20¢
S910N poanoiddy 21eq adA) aweN juedyddy # |921ed SSaIppY 1@ HWQNS  # HWIdd

tZoz SsHwidd asueldwo) Suiuoz dm) ajddeusoy)




§9--¥20¢

¥9--20¢

£9--¥707

29--%20¢

19--120¢

09--+20¢

65--¥20C

85--¥202

LS—¥T0T

95-¥20¢

§5-¥20¢

7S--¥20¢

€5--%20¢

5720t

15-720¢

S3JON panoiddy a1eq adAl awe juedijddy # [921ed SS9JppY 2le@ Jwqgns  # Jwidd
05-%20¢

¥20z/s/8 WooY UoSeas ¢ s, Yoo Joj dwy Aeq iealn  0T-Z00-ZTO-#T-80 a9jeuwied M ST/ ¥20Z/1/8  6v-%20T
veoe/s/8 3p|g 90V B HAS  5,UJ0YJI33YDS JOJ SDWOH dUOoISYdly  ST-800-6T0-7T-80 PY peyos 8oty ¥20e/1/8  8v--t70t
¥20z/s/8 3pig 2oy s,88e] ayl .o} Sp|g soigie|)  78-7Z00-/00-¥T-80 A 93ptd ApulM v/8ZT  ¥20T/1€/L  Lv—¥20C
vzoe/ve/L usis yaunyyadead  00-Z00-600-¥T-80 AsjleA ABYD 0569 vCOT/vT/L 9120z
vzoz/L1/L 3pig 2oy neynog Alen 00-900-TZ0-¥T-80 Py JauRQNUIY S¥L0T  ¥20T/LT/L  SPt20T
9z1s dwies jo32ap Bude|dsy  vZ0Z/LT/L WooY Uosess ¢ BWINIS YUY  0S5-9£0-TTO-¥T-80 JQBUUBAIOM 0029 ¥20T/LT/L  vv--te0T
¥20e/91/L ¥3Q uedoT Apuey Joj pjaIys UsaIy  ZS-T00-L00-71-80 SaJoys uesuna v069  ¥20Z/9T/L  Ev--t20T
¥zoz/st/L ERITER] Jauadie) uesns g ULl 00-0£0-060-¥T-80 Jgdoy|iH 2565 ¥20T/ST/L  Tv—-+e0T
vz0T/ST/L H4S maN siap|ing YA Asusypuoy  £0-S00-ZTO0-¥1-80 PYSON /Y09  ¥20C/0T/L Tv—¥Z0C
¥20z/0t/L ¥23Q JojAes uyor  00-800-r20-¥1-80 pY uosSHRqoY N S/ ¥20Z/0T/L  Ov—-¥20T
vz0oz/8/L uay Asleymung  00-6T0-0V0-7T-80 Jg uewnog QSEL ¥20e/8/L  6€--¥20T
vz0e/e/L [ood puno.s anoqy uosiapuy sl 00-600-G/T-¥T-80 e.sa1neag 9¢0¢T veoz/e/L  8E-ve0T
swuud Suiemy H4S maN J3p|NIA YIaqest|3 B s9teY)  Z0-S00-CTO-+T-80 PY 0N TTZ9 v20¢/T/L  LE-¥20T
vz0z/ve/9 H4S maN [IU2AY NeA 4oy s31adold EH  S0-S00-2TO-¥T-80 pY MmogJes 98/  ¥Z0Z/8T/9 9€--¥Z0T
vz0z/T1/9 3p(g 2oy By YoSUSIAl LIIBYS B YBON  0Q-E£00-8TO-T-80 Py J3PeD T80¢T  +¥20Z/¢T/9  SE--+20T
¥20¢/01/9 ERITEN sJ3IB Jop 93ua4 Joladns  G6-8T0-900-%1-80 Jamaines) p9es  ¥Z0T/0T/9  ¥E--v20T
¥20¢/s/9 293P sIXd JIA0 JOOY ,Sauey syl Joj ApAT8a1n  00-ZT0-0L0-¥1-80 Ja MON N £T789 ¥70T/S/9 €€--vC0T
¥20z/s/9 Spig 2oy uojueis piaed  00-€£00-09T-¢1-80 1Q auIney 6609 ¥e0¢/S/9  ¢e-¥e0e




